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December 31, 2024 

VIA REGULAR MAIL 

Jerome D. Schad 
Chair 
295 Main Street 
Room 350 
Buffalo, NY 14203-2494 

Peggy A. LaGree 
Vice Chair 
295 Main Street 
Room 350 
Buffalo, NY 14203-2494 

Michele M. Iannello 
Treasurer 
295 Main Street 
Room 350 
Buffalo, NY 14203-2494 

Re: Providence Farm Collective: Water Service 

Dear Commissioners:  

The undersigned represents Providence Farm Collective (“PFC”), a nonprofit organization 
located at 5701 Burton Road in the Town of Orchard Park.  PFC is situated on thirty-seven (37) 
acres of prime farmland within a New York State Agricultural District. We write to inform the 
Board of Commissioners of PFC’s pending request for public water service, and the actions of 
Town of Orchard Park (“Town”) and its Town Engineer in refusing to allow the Erie County 
Water Authority (“Authority”) to make a water service connection to PFC.  

As way of introduction, PFC proudly hosts two hundred and fifty (250) farmers, most of whom 
are immigrants, who in 2023 produced over 100,000 pounds of locally grown produce for the 
Western New York Community, feeding 11,000 people. See, 
https://providencefarmcollective.org. To enhance its efforts and better provide for its farmers, 
PFC built a new 5,400 square foot barn.  This new barn houses equipment and produce storage 
space, a produce wash and pack area, a kitchen, a produce store, office space, and two bathrooms 
with showers. The purpose behind obtaining the grant money and funding over several years to 
construct this $1.4 million dollar barn was to streamline and modernize PFC’s operations. Part of 
that goal has always included a clean, reliable, and affordable public water for non-irrigation 
purposes.  

For the past three years, PFC has done everything necessary in working with the Town to obtain 
public water service for its new barn. Originally, PFC contacted Orchard Park to inquire about 
public water service and was informed that the actual water service provider was the Authority. 
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As you know, the Authority services, maintains and provides water to residents, businesses and 
farms in the Town through the Authority’s Lease-Management Agreement with the Town.  
However, the Town mistakenly posited that the only way for PFC to access water from the 
Authority was through a new Town Water District, purportedly designated as Town of Orchard 
Park Water District #17-4.  The cost to undertake such an effort was prohibitive.  
 
However, PFC subsequently learned a new water district was not the only option to access public 
water. A much simpler and cost efficient connection could be made via a Reduced Pressure Zone 
/Hotbox (“RPZ”) built within the northern portion of PFC’s property, located within Water 
District #17.  The Authority services and maintains a 24” water main and a 10” distribution line 
along Powers Road in the Town. From the RPZ connection point, PFC would run a private 
lateral service line across its property to the new barn building. Given PFC’s limited resources as 
a nonprofit, this option was the only feasible one.  
 
Subsequently, PFC submitted all the necessary paperwork with the Authority in order for the 
Authority to connect PFC to Authority water.  It is PFC’s understanding that the Authority 
accepted this application. PFC then submitted a permit application to the Town in order to 
construct a RPZ in its property along Power Road. The Town approved the RPZ permit 
application and the private lateral service line.  A copy of the approved RPZ permit is attached 
hereto. Based upon the Town’s approval, PFC built the RPZ and constructed a private lateral 
service line from the RPZ to the barn.   
 
It is PFC’s understanding that through the Lease-Management Agreement the Authority services 
all distribution and transmission water lines in the Town. It is also PFC’s understanding that 
property owners in the Town seeking to connect to public water service do so by submitting a 
request for connection to the Authority. The Town is not involved in this application process. 
PFC submitted that application, and the required materials, and communicated with Authority 
engineers to ensure that the Powers Road RPZ connection described above was amenable to the 
Authority. It is our understanding that the Authority has the water service application material in 
its files. Unfortunately, while the Authority and PFC agree that this connection would create no 
problem or strain on water service in District #17, the Town has refused to allow the Authority to 
make the connection. PFC believes that under the Lease-Management Agreement the Authority 
is exclusively responsible for the determination to approve a water connection. 
 
The Town and Town Engineer Wayne Bieler, rather than allow water service connection to that 
RPZ, have taken a course which would see PFC and three other property owners pay for the 
establishment of a new Town Water District. PFC has reached out to each of the property 
owners, all of whom have expressed that they have no interest in being part of a new Town 
Water District. However, this plan would involve the construction of a water main extension 
running from Powers Road down Burton Road to Neuman Creek, approximately four-tenths 
(4/10) of a mile. Based upon knowledgeable estimates, that cost would exceed $400,000.00. The 
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Town has made PFC’s agreement to a new Water District, and its concomitant lion’s share of the 
cost, a condition precedent to PFC’s water connection at the RPZ in District #17.  PFC is 
concerned that unless it acquiesces in and bears the cost of a new Water District, the new barn 
will be left without a clean, safe, reliable and affordable source of water.  
 
PFC respectfully requests that this Board and its officers formally review the application of PFC 
submitted to the Authority on or about July 25, 2024 and approve PFC’s access to water.  
However, should the Authority not take such action, PFC would kindly request a formal 
declaration of the Authority’s position. It is PFC’s belief that where a water connection may be 
made efficiently and with ease, then such a connection should be made as soon as possible.  
 
PFC, its Board, Staff and 250 farmers thank you in advance for your consideration of this 
request.  
 
Should you have any other questions or concerns, please reach out to the undersigned via 
telephone at (716) 873-8833, ext. 215, or by email at pweiss@bhwtlaw.com. Alternatively, the 
Board may reach PFC’s Executive Director, Kristin Heltman-Weiss, via telephone at (716) 913-
7243 or via email at kristin@providencefarmcollective.org.  
 
Very truly yours, 
 
BARTLO, HETTLER, WEISS & TRIPI 
 
 
 
By: ______________________ 
 Paul D. Weiss 
 
PDW/dtp 
 
Copy to: Charles Eaton, ECWA Chief Operating Officer (via email only) 
  Terrence D. McCracken, ECWA Secretary (via email only) 
  Karen A. Prendergast, PFC Co-President (via email only)  
  Zelalem Gemmeda, PFC Co-President (via email only) 
  Kristin Heltman-Weiss, PFC Executive Director (via email only) 
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